
 

 

 

14 August 2023 

At the conclusion of the Corporate, Finance, Properties and 
Tenders Committee 

Cultural and Creative Committee 
 



Cultural and Creative Committee 14 August 2023 

  

Agenda 
  

 

 

1.   Confirmation of Minutes 

2.   Statement of Ethical Obligations and Disclosures of Interest 

3.   Grants and Sponsorship – Accommodation Grants Program - 4A Centre for 
Contemporary Asian Art 

 



 

 

 
 

Disclaimer, Terms and Guidelines for 
Speakers at Council Committees 
As part of our democratic process, the City invites members of the community to speak directly to Councillors during 
Committee meetings about items on the agenda. 

Webcast  

In accordance with the City of Sydney Code of Meeting Practice, Committee meetings are recorded and webcast 
live on the City of Sydney website at www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au.  

Members of the public attending a council or committee meeting may have their image, voice and personal 
information (including name and address) recorded, publicly broadcast and archived for up to 12 months.  

Consent  

By attending a council or committee meeting, members of the public consent to this use of their image, voice and 
personal information.  

Disclaimer 

Statements made by individuals at a council or committee meeting, and which may be contained in a live stream 
or recording of the meeting are those of the individuals making them, and not of the City. To be clear, unless set 
out in a resolution of council, the City does not endorse or support such statements. 

The City does not accept any liability for statements made or actions taken by individuals during a Council or 
Committee meeting that may be contrary to law, including discriminatory, defamatory or offensive comments. Such 
statements or actions are not protected by privilege and may be the subject of legal proceedings and potential 
liability, for which the City takes no responsibility. 

Guidelines  

To enable the Committee to hear a wide range of views and concerns within the limited time available, we 
encourage people interested in speaking at Committee to: 

1. Register to speak by calling Secretariat on 9265 9702 or emailing secretariat@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au 
before 10.00am on the day of the meeting. 

2. Check the recommendation in the Committee report before speaking, as it may address your concerns so 
that you just need to indicate your support for the recommendation. 

3. Note that there is a three minute time limit for each speaker (with a warning bell at two minutes) and 
prepare your presentation to cover your major points within that time. 

4. Avoid repeating what previous speakers have said and focus on issues and information that the 
Committee may not already know. 

5. If there is a large number of people interested in the same item as you, try to nominate three 
representatives to speak on your behalf and to indicate how many people they are representing. 

Committee meetings can continue until very late, particularly when there is a long agenda and a large number of 
speakers. This impacts on speakers who have to wait until very late, as well as City staff and Councillors who are 
required to remain focused and alert until very late. At the start of each Committee meeting, the Committee Chair 
may reorder agenda items so that those items with speakers can be dealt with first. 

Committee reports are available at www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au 

http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/
mailto:secretariat@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au
http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/


Cultural and Creative Committee 14 August 2023 
 

Confirmation of Minutes 

Minutes of the following meetings of the Cultural and Creative Committee are submitted for 
confirmation: 

Meeting of 19 June 2023 

1

Item 1.



Cultural and Creative Committee 14 August 2023 
 

Statement of Ethical Obligations 

In accordance with section 233A of the Local Government Act 1993, the Lord Mayor and 

Councillors are bound by the Oath or Affirmation of Office made at the start of the Council 

term to undertake their civic duties in the best interests of the people of the City of Sydney 

and the City of Sydney Council and to faithfully and impartially carry out the functions, 

powers, authorities and discretions vested in them under the Local Government Act 1993 or 

any other Act, to the best of their ability and judgement. 

Disclosures of Interest 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Local Government Act 1993, the City of Sydney Code of 
Meeting Practice and the City of Sydney Code of Conduct, Councillors are required to 
disclose and manage both pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests in any matter on the 
agenda for this meeting. 

In both cases, the nature of the interest must be disclosed. 

This includes receipt of reportable political donations over the previous four years. 

1

Item 2.



Cultural and Creative Committee 14 August 2023 
 

 

Grants and Sponsorship - Accommodation Grants Program - 4A Centre for 
Contemporary Asian Art 

File No: X086353.004 

Summary 

The Accommodation Grants Program supports community, cultural, economic and 
sustainability focused organisations by providing accommodation in City owned buildings 
within the property portfolio at nil or below market rent.  

Accommodation Grant recipients are organisations that provide services that meet the needs 
identified in Sustainable Sydney 2030–2050: Continuing the Vision and the City’s strategic 
plans and policies. Demand for properties remains strong, with more than 690 organisations 
currently on a notification list for future properties. 

Currently, there are 73 leases or licences held by 66 organisations located across 51 City 
properties managed under the Program. Recipients of Accommodation Grants enter into 
leases or licenses with the City for a five-year lease term and can apply for up to 100 per 
cent rental subsidy. Recipients of Accommodation Grants are subject to an annual 
performance review of their performance against the criteria in their lease or licence 
agreements.  

An expression of interest process commenced on 9 June 2023 for an organisation servicing 
the cultural and creative sectors to tenant the property located at Shop 2, Ground Floor, The 
Corporation Building 181-187 Hay Street, Haymarket. Due to the significant limitations on 
this property, expressions of interest were only sought from suitable cultural and creative 
sector organisations currently located in the Corporation Building. 

This report seeks Council approval to enter into a lease with Asian Australian Artists 
Association Incorporated (4A Centre for Contemporary Asian Art) who are the preferred 
applicant for Shop 2, Ground Floor, The Corporation Building, 181-187 Hay Street, 
Haymarket. 

  

1

Item 3.



Cultural and Creative Committee 14 August 2023 
 

 

Recommendation 

It is resolved that: 

(A) Council approve the provision of an Accommodation Grant to Asian Australian Artists 
Association Incorporated for Shop 2, Ground Floor, The Corporation Building, 181-187 
Hay Street, Haymarket to lease the property for a five-year period from 1 September 
2023 to 31 August 2028, with the option to renew, on the following rental subsidy: 

 Market Rental 
Value 

Rental Subsidy Rental Subsidy 
Value 

Rent Payable 

Year 1 

2023-24 

$64,600 100% $64,600 $0 

Year 2 

2024-25 

$66,538 97% $64,542 $1,996 

Year 3 

2025-26 

$68,534 97% $66,478 $2,056 

Year 4 

2026-27 

$70,590 97% $68,472 $2,118 

Year 5 

2027-28 

$72,708 97% $70,527 $2,181 

(B) authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer to negotiate, execute and 
administer the lease agreement with the Asian Australian Artists Association 
Incorporated for Shop 2, Ground Floor, The Corporation Building, 181-187 Hay Street, 
Haymarket; and 

(C) authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer to correct minor errors to the 
matters set out in this report, noting that the identity of the recipients will not change, 
and a CEO Update will be provided to Council advising of any changes made in 
accordance with this resolution. 

Attachments 

Nil. 

  

2



Cultural and Creative Committee 14 August 2023 
 

 

Background 

1. The Accommodation Grants Program supports community, cultural, economic and 
sustainability focused organisations by providing accommodation in City owned 
buildings within the property portfolio at nil or below market rent.  

2. The Accommodation Grants Program currently makes 73 spaces available for 66 
organisations in 51 City properties. As properties become available, the City seeks 
applications from for profit and not for profit organisations interested in occupying a 
City-owned property at a reduced rental rate.  

3. Located at 181-187 Hay Street, in the heart of Haymarket, The Corporation Building is 
a state heritage listed building built in 1893 by Sydney Municipal Council, at the time 
among the most important and highly decorated municipal buildings in Sydney.  

4. The building was acquired by the City in 1999 and has a Deed of Agreement with 
State Government.   

5. The City undertook significant heritage restoration works during 2021/22, including 
major re-roofing and façade repair. 

6. The building currently includes a mix of cultural and commercial tenants across two 
levels, with four shop frontages at street level, and first floor gallery and office. Shops 1 
and 4 are currently occupied by commercial tenants. Since 2000, Asian Australian 
Artists Association Incorporated (4A Centre for Contemporary Asian Art) have leased 
Level 1 and Shop 3 through the City’s Accommodation Grants Program.  

7. Shop 2 is currently vacant and is a 38 square metre street level shop front space. The 
space was previously leased through the City’s commercial portfolio.  

8. The City has undertaken extensive engagement with the community as outlined in a 
community vision for Haymarket (November 2022) to inform the Draft Haymarket and 
Chinatown Revitalisation Strategy (August 2023).  

9. When Shop 2 became vacant, City staff identified an opportunity to further progress 
the City's strategic priorities for the Haymarket area by bringing this property into the 
Accommodation Grants Program and providing it to an organisation from the creative 
or cultural sectors. 

10. Use of Shop 2 is restricted as there are no on-site sanitary facilities and it is not viable 
to install them given the size of the premises. There are also no sanitary facilities 
located in the common areas of the building. This means the most practical solution is 
to provide Shop 2 to an existing tenant within the building with on-site sanitary facilities 
as part of their tenancy. 

11. On 9 June 2023, the City commenced an expression of interest process inviting the 
only cultural and creative sector organisation within the building, 4A Centre for 
Contemporary Asian Art, to apply for an Accommodation Grant for the premises. 

12. A site visit was conducted with the applicant on 15 June 2023.  

13. Applications closed at midnight on 3 July 2023, and one eligible application was 
received from Asian Australian Artists Association Incorporated (trading as 4A Centre 
for Contemporary Asian Art). 

3



Cultural and Creative Committee 14 August 2023 
 

 

14. The assessment panel consisted of City staff from Strategy and Urban Analytics and 
Creative City, with specialist advice from Property Strategy and Property Services.  

15. The application was assessed against the following assessment criteria:  

(a) the relevance of the proposal to meet the needs of artists and the cultural and 
creative sector in Sydney;  

(b) viability of the proposed model to maximise utilisation of the space;  

(c) capacity and capability of the organisation to manage the lease;  

(d) whether the proposed use is permissible under the planning controls; and  

(e) alignment with the Accommodation Grant Program and City of Sydney's strategic 
priorities, and the City of Sydney's grants policy and ethics framework.  

16. All grants are recommended on the condition that any required approvals, permits and 
development consents are obtained by the applicant.  

17. This report recommends that Council approve the subsidy level and grant value of the 
tenant listed, with annual increases of three per cent in grant value and rent to be paid 
for the financial years 2023/24, 2024/25, 2025/26, 2026/27 and 2027/28 in accordance 
with the City's minimal fixed increase percentage.  

18. This report also recommends that Council approve a three per cent fixed rent increase 
in alignment with the three per cent market value increase on commencement of any 
holdover and any anniversary of the commencement of the holdover period.  

19. The City will require entry into an agreement on acceptable terms as part of the grant, 
which may include payment of a bond as part of the lease or licence agreement.  

20. The offer is made on the basis that the City will remove redundant shelving and 
cabinetry in the premises.  

21. The following organisation is the recommended applicant for this property:  

Asian Australian Artists Association Incorporated (T/A 4A Centre for Contemporary 
Asian Art) 

22. Asian Australian Artists Association Incorporated is an independent not-for-profit 
organisation that champions the practices of Asian artists and elevates cross-cultural 
dialogues between Australia and Asia. Since 1996, Asian Australian Artists 
Association, trading as 4A Centre for Contemporary Asian Art, has fostered excellence 
and innovation in contemporary culture through the commissioning, presentation, 
documentation and research of contemporary art. 

23. Since 2000, 4A Centre for Contemporary Asian Art have occupied Level 1 and Shop 3 
of The Corporation Building, 181-187 Hay Street, Haymarket as an Accommodation 
Grant Program tenant. They use these premises as an art gallery, event and office 
space to deliver an annual program of exhibitions and public programs showcasing the 
work of Asian-Australian contemporary artists. In 2022 4A presented seven exhibitions 
and 54 public programs exhibiting or commissioning the work of 31 artists. They 
presented 114 artworks and received 77,000 visitations and are a significant, 
successful cultural institution in the Haymarket precinct. 

4



Cultural and Creative Committee 14 August 2023 
 

 

24. 4A have built a reputation as one of Sydney’s most important independent arts 
organisations, delivering high quality exhibition programs, research and advocacy 
under the direction of visual arts leaders such as, most recently, Thea Mai Baumann, 
Amrit Gill, Mikala Tai and Aaron Seeto.  

25. 4A demonstrated their leadership in the national cultural landscape by being certified 
carbon neutral in 2019 by the Climate Active Carbon Neutral Standard, set by the 
Australian Government Department of Environment and Energy. 4A measure their 
emissions each year, reduce these where possible, offset remaining emissions and set 
sustainable goals. They were the second organisation in NSW to achieve this, along 
with Sydney Opera House. 

26. The organisation has a strong track record for local, interstate and international 
partnerships and collaborations, creating consistent international program and 
exchange opportunities for Asian-Australian artists, for example as venue partner for 
Biennale of Sydney and design of the Sydney Pavilion at Shanghai Biennale. They 
attract a consistent level of support from all levels of government and private sector 
philanthropy. Local supporters for the Shop 2 expansion proposal include Powerhouse 
Museum, Accessible Arts, Soul of Chinatown and FBi Radio. 

27. Most recently, 4A have devised innovative local community engagement projects such 
as the Secret Snacks Haymarket foodie walking tour, and the Precinct Activation 
program underway called Art in the Heart of Haymarket. This year-long series of 
activations in Chinatown and Haymarket includes a street party, performances, 
installations, fashion show, conversations, cooking demonstrations and live music, 
delivering on their ongoing commitment to celebrate and enrich the unique stories of 
the precinct.  

28. 4A Centre for Contemporary Asian Art were rated A - meeting or exceeding 

performance criteria in the latest annual performance review of Accommodation Grant 

recipients based on the 2022 calendar year, which was reported to Council on 26 June 

2023. 

29. 4A Centre for Contemporary Asian Art proposes to use Shop 2 as a multi-purpose and 
multi-function space that is dedicated to showcasing the work of Asian creatives, Asian 
produced content, and local designers. It will include a contemporary arts and culture 
retail shop, exhibition space and small scale event space.  

30. Shop 2 will allow 4A Centre for Contemporary Asian Art to expand their artistic and 
cultural footprint and will serve as an extension of the existing gallery to showcase and 
curate Asian culture creators. Their plan is to generate an expanded creative hub for 
diverse community engagement, to assist them to reach new audiences and to support 
the growing creative precinct within Haymarket. 

31. 4A Centre for Contemporary Asian Art proposes to present targeted artistic 
programming into Shop 2 to encourage foot traffic along the route between Hay Street 
and the Powerhouse Museum activating Haymarket as a vibrant precinct that 
embraces the multiplicities of Asian art and artists, fostering cultural exchange, 
community engagement, and artistic innovation.  

5



Cultural and Creative Committee 14 August 2023 
 

 

Key Implications 

Strategic Alignment - Sustainable Sydney 2030-2050 Continuing the Vision 

32. Sustainable Sydney 2030-2050: Continuing the Vision renews the communities’ vision 
for the sustainable development of the city to 2050. It includes 10 strategic directions 
to guide the future of the city, as well as 10 targets against which to measure progress. 
This grant is aligned with the following strategic directions and objectives: 

(a) Direction 6 - An equitable and inclusive city - Everyone feels welcome and can 
afford to live here if they choose. Everyone can participate, prosper and reach 
their full potential in a city that is fair and just. 

(b) Direction 7 - Resilient and diverse communities - Our city and its public places 
and infrastructure can withstand impacts from a changing climate and 
emergency situations. We work with communities, businesses and other 
organisations to strengthen connections and networks, to prepare our city and be 
able to recover from most situations.  

(c) Direction 8 - A thriving cultural and creative life - We are proud of our city. We 
are all able to participate in, contribute to and benefit from its cultural life.  

(d) Direction 9 - A transformed and innovative economy - Our city maintains its 
position locally, nationally and globally as a destination for business, investment 
and talent. Innovation is central to the economy and transformation has occurred 
across all industries. Wealth and benefits are shared equitably.  

Social / Cultural / Community 

33. The City's Grants and Sponsorship Program provides the City with a platform to 
support cultural and social initiatives from the communities and businesses within the 
local area.  

34. The organisations within the Accommodation Grants Program make an invaluable 
contribution to our communities through the development and management of 
services, activities and programs.  

Financial Implications 

35. The potential commercial gross revenue to be forgone is $64,600 per annum or 
$334,619 over the proposed five-year lease. Revenue from this site was not 
anticipated in the 2023/24 Operating Budget. The subsidy will be forecast against the 
Accommodation Grants Program for 2023/24 financial year. Subsidy rates relating to 
future financial years will be incorporated in future Accommodation Grants Program 
budgets. 

  

6



Cultural and Creative Committee 14 August 2023 
 

 

Relevant Legislation 

36. This Expression of Interest has been conducted in accordance with the Local 
Government Act 1993, the Local Government (General) Regulation 2021 and the 
City’s Procurement and Contract Management Policy and an independent probity 
advisor has been involved for oversight of the process. 

37. Section 356 of the Local Government Act 1993 provides that a council may, in 
accordance with a resolution of the council, contribute money or otherwise grant 
financial assistance to persons for the purpose of exercising its functions.  

Critical Dates / Time Frames 

38. Establishing the new lease is required as soon as possible to minimise vacancy. 

EMMA RIGNEY 

Director City Life 

Danielle Tuwai, Cultural Projects Coordinator - Cultural Infrastructure  

7


	Agenda
	1 Confirmation of Minutes
	2 Statement of Ethical Obligations and Disclosures of Interest
	3 Grants and Sponsorship – Accommodation Grants Program - 4A Centre for Contemporary Asian Art

